December 7, 2006

Minutes -RETS Day 1 - December 7, 2006
(Prepared by Alex Choi, Gina Accawi, Paula O’Brien, and Steve Verba)

RETS2 Strategy and Roadmap

8:45 a.m. —10:15 a.m.
Steve Verba (Oracle) covered the history of RETS standard, support and backing of the
effort by NAR, and indicated the goal of keeping relevant in the space. Steve detailed the
strategy for the 3 year horizon and Paula O’Brien (Ronin Technologies) covered the
tactical Roadmap projects which address business and technical objectives over the next
year.

Strategic Initiatives

1. Revamp governance, workgroups, and process.
a. More details to come in Friday's meeting.
b. Discuss how to improve the process of developing and supporting the
development of the standard.
2. Sponsor RETS Evangelist roles.
a. Mark Lesswing has funded a study of the east coast market .
b. Effort to support adoption in the community at large.
3. Develop RETS Showcase.
a. Idea is to illustrate the value of RETS for the broker and agent community.
b. Efforts approved for 2007 and into 2008.

Paul Stusiak (Falcon Technologies) opened the floor for discussion from the community
regarding the future of RETS and the Roadmap. As well, he opened the floor for any
comments regarding the existing specifications.

Peter Williams (Rapattoni) indicated that the backend of message queuing was of
interest. Paul confirmed that this is something in the Roadmap agenda for 2007, along
with other features such as publish/subscribe and delivery receipt. Steve indicated that the
development of the core RETS2 CRUD interface had taken precedence over items such
as publish/subscribe in 2006.

Dan Woolley (eNeighborhoods/WyldFyre) wanted to mention the audience excitement in
yesterday’s Developer Quickstart presentation. He was enthusiastic about how easy it
was to get a RETS2 client developed, and very impressed with the interoperability
demonstration between Java and .NET. He emphasized that everyone would benefit by
having the information from Gina Accawi and Jeff Brush’s (Ronin Technologies)
presentation on the Reference Implementation as well as tips, code, etc. made available
on a Wiki, or rets.org. He stated that the RETS client community is going to be very
pleased about the way tools are there to help development with RETS2. This is
something clients struggled with in RETS 1.x. Dan added that he believed the new tools,

Page 1 of 12



December 7, 2006

web services, etc. can help encourage innovation again in the real estate world with
RETS2.

Bill Tonissen (ZipForms) indicated that web services have ease of use and robustness and
extensibility. He also said that RETS1 had been difficult to work with, and web services
are welcome. ZipForms has been using web services for three years.

Gary Miller (Lucero) felt that web services have matured into being an accepted
direction, and shouldn't be debated for RETS.

Paul opened the floor to Kevin McQueen (Focus Forward Consulting) to describe what
he has observed with the respect to the adoption of RETS. Kevin stated that he felt the
community has really accepted that RETS is the way to go. The area of focus moving
forward should be on the brokers. Steve indicated the MLS and the brokers should both
be encouraged to adopt RETS.

Rapattoni has seen a 100% spike in RETS use, however, it has been primarily wholesale
data pull not selective querying or service use. Matthew McGuire (First American MLS)
indicated that First American has observed a similar spike, and that he feels mass data
movement is not covered as much as it should be. Paula indicated that the WSDL mixins
and 2007 concepts such as publish/subscribe will accommodate this realm.

RETS2 Reference Implementation

Jeff Brush demonstrated two RETS2 clients retrieving data from the RETS2 reference
implementation server. The clients were a Visual Studio created console app client and a
Java XFire client. The demonstration illustrated interoperability between platforms and
also the difference between getting started with RETS2 as a client developer vs. getting
started with RETS 1.x. Due to the RETS2 wsdl and toolkit support, clients can create
applications quickly. It was also noted that the code generated from the wsdl can be used
as a service by both RETS2 clients and servers. Both the C# .NET service and the Java
XFire service will be made available on rets.org.

Single Sign On

Paul Hethmon (Clareity) presented on the Clareity’s plans to create a single sign-on
reference implementation which will be provided as open source for NAR. Following the
interoperability goals for RETS, Clareity will provide both a Java version and a .NET
version of Provider and Requestor code. The goal is to have code available to download
in first quarter of 2007.

Paul indicated that the decision was to use SAML 2.0 rather than SAML 1.1. SAML 2.0
covers more use cases, and there is support for it in the OASIS community. He also
covered the use of the OpenSAML toolkit provided by Internet2, WSE 3.0 and Axis2. He
indicated that the scope of the project includes both RETS2 and RETS 1.X.

Steve asked if the code will be made available on the rets.org or through Clareity's site.
Paul indicated that it may be made available for code checkout. Peter Williams asked

Page 2 of 12



December 7, 2006

whether the idea was to make this a central point in the security. Paul responded that the
idea was that this code would be used as part of a larger system. Dan Mills (First
American MLS) asked for clarification if the scope of the tool only covers the
communication once trust has been established. Paul confirmed that this was the scope.
Stuart Schuessler (Clareity) indicated that SAML 2.0 has some Liberty Alliance
documents explaining the realm of establishing trust.

Page 3 of 12



December 7, 2006

Transaction Management Payloads Forum

10:30 a.m. — 12:00 p.m.

Paul Stusiak (Falcon Technologies) and Paula O’Brien (Ronin Technologies) opened the
session talking about the TMS payload workgroup efforts to date. The group has
reviewed and provisionally approved the Activity, Contact, Participants, and
TransactionList payloads and is currently working on the DocumentDetail, DocumentList
and Documents payloads.

Ray Emirzian (DocStar) began by asking if digital signing should be included. He stated
that there are several discussions on how to implement E-signature. Realtors/MLS don't
always understand what they are asking. DocStar has a digital signing platform. That
includes the USPS. Federal Laws can prosecute violating of these digital signatures.

Paul stated that currently there is no indicator for physical signature. Paula asked the
group where the physical (digital) signature belongs in the payload.

Bill Tonissen (ZipForms) stated that some documents require signature (authenticity) but
others do not. ZipForms uses DocuSign to sign a document.

Matthew McGuire (First American MLS) stated that there are uses of Adobe Approval to
sign and manage documents. He also stated that RETS2 needs to cooperate with current

Brokers back-end systems. Matthew then inquired whether there should be a RETS study
to identity Brokers back-end needs, and define appropriate payloads. Paula indicated that
this research and those payloads were in the Roadmap for 2007.

Ray inquired if there was any resistance to adopting digital signatures. Bill replied that
training is needed to help brokers and realtors to understand.

Paul inquired if more than the document needed to be signed.

Bill noted that a document may need multiple e-signatures, and Ray replied that the
Contract signature has the most weight.

Dan Woolley (eNeighborhoods/WyldFyre) questioned the need for RETS payload
elements to contain document signatures when in most cases the signatures is in the
document itself not the payload describing the document. The group agreed on this point
and a decision was made not to carry the eSignature or any physical signature as an
element in the RETS documents payloads.

Ray stated that RETS is describing the exchange of info, not the standards of business

transaction. Matthew seconded this notion and proposed the payload may just want to
exchange information about the existence of or need for a signature.

Page 4 of 12



December 7, 2006

The group decided an element was required to identify signers. In addition, an eSign flag
will be included as an optional attribute to denote the presence of an eSignature in the
reference document.

The group then discussed the document type list which is included as an enumeration in
the current schema. For document names that do not fit within this enumeration, the
group proposed an additional LocalName element be created which is just an xs:string
type. This proposal was approved.

Mark Suchy (First American) inquired about the idea of Document Containers. These
would be placeholder payloads that define: security, attributes, etc. The desire is to
simplify uploading of information for a new Transaction with an empty document
container.

Matthew suggested including an attribute in the existing Documents payloads to specify
if document is present or has content.

Paula proposed a “hasContent” Boolean attribute that would describe the status of the
document container that has a document present or not. If false, a document does not
exist. If true — a document has been created. Note: The document may not be complete
but present. The group agreed to add this to the Documents payloads. This proposal was
approved.

Joshua Vosper (Rapattoni): Pointed out some typographical errors within Transaction.xsd
has. These will be corrected.

Paul proposed refactoring the RETSCommons schema, in particular the way the
isgSecurity attribute is used. The group agreed.

Voting on transaction payloads is deferred to electronic voting in Jan. 2007. Voters will
need to review TM schemas. 2 review dates:

Review 1 — Dec. 21, 2007 for ServiceOrder.xsd 10PT, 11CT, 12ET.
Review 2 - TBD.

Page 5 of 12



December 7, 2006

Marketing Forum

10:30 a.m. —12:00 p.m.

Agenda
1. Intro
2. Overlapping Market Survey update: mid-Atlantic study
3. Marketing plan comments
4. Some ideas for 2007
5. RETS matrix
6. What else?

MLS Benefits of RETS, How to Encourage Adoption

Kevin McQueen (Focus Forward Consulting) discussed his introduction to RETS in 2003
with what occurred during a data exchange when the MLS changed vendors.

Overlapping Market Study

Key question is to discover why the MLS's don't adopt RETS. Kevin met with 20 MLS's,
and found that only 2 were really focused on RETS. The issues uncovered were:
1. The need for broker education

2. Monitoring the usage and abuse
3. MLS hesitate to share data with third-parties and brokers, avoidance of mingling
data between different MLS's

Steve made the comment that providing and presenting tools, packets, etc. to facilitate
RETS adoption sounds like a critical part of encouraging adoption. The job is too much
for simply one person to accomplish. Kevin indicated that using RETS could be adopted
in 90 day period, but in addition to Mark some technical help is needed. The challenges
are in vendor switches. The business agreement, contracts, and policies are missing
pieces.

Cathy Fisher (Avantia, Inc.) and Kristen Carr (RMLS) discussed how the financial
benefit of investing in RETS and getting savings in return is critical to helping the
business people understand. Kristen suggested that sharing stories of how RETS helps
with vendor changeover may assist in demystifying RETS. Kevin indicated the fear of
complexity is still there. The fears of completely open data when using RETS seem to
persist, although metadata and customer management tools should punch a hole in the
wall.

Kevin indicated that security is really more about the fact the RETS is being used to
wholesale copy data. Steve indicated that the use cases for both bulk and real time RETS

Page 6 of 12



December 7, 2006

could be articulated and documented. He said the documentation available on rets.org
that could be updated to help explain these use cases.

Dan Woolley (eNeighborhoods/WyldFyre) stressed that the frequency of updates and size
of data package for RETS should be attractive benefits. The statement was made that
NAR could have an impact by encouraging RETS.

Cathy suggested that regional and state level MLS meetings may be a good avenue for
encouraging RETS. Kevin said the common discussion is really surrounding the actual
primary vendor software.

A joint letter from the vendors and other members of the community requesting help

from NAR on encouraging RETS adoption was suggested. Kevin will take this on as a
task.

Page 7 of 12



December 7, 2006

RETS Implementation Forum
1:00 p.m. — 2:30 p.m.
Kevin McQueen (Focus Forward Consulting) began by talking about the different
audiences for RETS. He stated that there are 45 3" party vendors nationwide. There are
audiences that think RETS will allow them immediate access to data but don't understand
the legal and MLS regulatory issues. As such, we need a strategy to promote RETS and

explain it to diverse audiences.

RETS 2.0 is the next wave. We need a compelling business communication message to
inform the MLS community.

Cathy Fisher (Avantia, Inc.) inquired if the reason is because the IT vendors do not have
national MLS clients. MLS associations are pushing it to their clients.

The group discussed if NAR should provide a grant to help lessen the cost or possibly
split the cost of developing RETS clients.

The group inquired whether NAR may not be addressing campaigning for RETS.
Suggestions included offering free downloads or CDs.

Round table

Google's of the world are setting up shell companies to help access MLS information.
State-level associations are trying to shut them out because Google is not selling homes
but wants to release listings to marketing companies. This would by-pass brokers.

RETS challenges were seen as increasing supply (vendors/MLS), and demand (clients).
The group suggested increasing RETS meetings, directed to specific audiences.

Appraisers are also end-users of the information. They can process listings for statistics.

Page 8 of 12



December 7, 2006

MLS Payloads Workgroup

1:00 p.m. — 2:30 p.m.
Paula O’Brien (Ronin Technologies) began the MLS payloads workgroup by discussing
recent work on the payloads, which included incorporating feedback from MLS input

sheets, rets-dev, MLS reports, the MISMO REPI standard and CREA’s National Data
Standard.

The group suggested that the TMS Activity payload was good for describing workflow
activities on a transaction, but not sufficient for describing events such as open houses
and tours. Matthew McGuire (First American MLS) proposed that a new Event payload
be created, based in part on the vevent type from ical. This proposal was approved.

The group discussed the Prospect payload and Matthew proposed that it be renamed
SavedQuery to express the function it served. This proposal was approved.

Matthew proposed that a new Prospect payload be created that uses Contact information
from the TMS Contact payload and applies elements pertaining to MLS business
prospecting rules. The group approved the proposal and a future task for the MLS
payload workgroup will be to provide some of those common prospecting elements.

It was proposed to rename Agency to Agents for a clearer semantic meaning. This
proposal was approved by the group.

Matthew stated that the ListingHistory payload did not accurately represent how MLS’s
maintained history. He proposed that this payload be refactored to only have the handful
of common fields upon which a revision history would be maintained over time for a
listing. Steve Clarke (First American MLS) proposed that some of those fields would be
ListPrice, ListDate, and Status. The group approved this proposal to refactor the
ListingHistory payload accordingly.

Matthew proposed that a new payload be created that track changes to any type of record.
This payload, ChangeRecord, would track the fields changed on a given date (name, its
old and new value), date changed, and changed by. The group approved this proposal.

The group set December 20, 2006 at 2pm EST as the date for the next meeting. In
preparation for this meeting, members would review the Listing and Property payloads.

Page 9 of 12



December 7, 2006

Website (rets.org)

2:45 - 4:15 pm

Myron Adams convened the meeting and asked for comments about the new rets.org site
and suggestions for future enhancement, to keep the site timely, interesting, and relevant.

Chris McKeever (CRT) updated the group on Content management. The site
should be moved into drupal CMS in the January/February timeframe. This will
allow for easy updates to the site as well as management of workgroup
efforts/documentation. For workgroup needs, Paula O’Brien (Ronin
Technologies, Inc.) asserted that document history and versioning is important.
Paula suggested that good content for the site regarding RETS adoption would be
to post the results of Kristen Carr’s workgroup that is collecting statements from
approximately 20 people on why using RETS is a good idea.

Paula suggested that a utility allowing community participants to upload their
pictures and bios would be of interest, to find out who’s who in RETS. Also of
interest would be a featured “RETS Person of the Month”.

Paula stated that PPTs from presenters at RETS meetings should be accessible via
rets.org.

It was suggested that adding some how to's to the development section (what was
formerly intended on the old site’s “Tips and Tricks” section) would be helpful to
developers getting started with RETS as well as demonstrating new uses for
RETS.

It was suggested that the site needed sections with more help for brokers and
newbies, with targeted navigational assistance and content.

Wiki collaboration

Mpyron stated that there was a need for an article on rets.org highlighting the
difference between RETS and RETS2, from a business perspective.

Gina Accawi suggested that the site could use some additional mages or graphics
for more zip/zing.

Page 10 of 12



December 7, 2006

Scenario-Specific Solutions Forum
2:45 - 4:15 pm
Why RETS?

The issue was raised that we currently have RETS systems but not compelling stories or
marketing information. It was suggested that writing white papers with real stories to
address multiple target Real Estate audiences can help understand and sell RETS. This
prospective audience includes developers and IT staff.

Aggregating Data

Kristen requested that the group please find another synonym for “data aggregation”. She
pointed out that this phrase is very objectionable to those in the Real Estate industry.

Data Quality

The question was raised about the necessity of raising the bar to improve data quality in
order to repackage or re-purpose the MLS data. In some cases this means removing
personal data and other selective data.

RETS Marketing

It was stated that RETS is understated. The RETS community works closely with
developers. It was suggested that it is time to move RETS more into the “light” for
business people to understand RETS. It was suggested that a position paper could address
this. For example, this paper would include how a data field is used by many different
end-users.

Kristen liked the idea of a position paper. She acknowledged that the RETS group is very
good at technical and engineering solutions and establishing Standards.

Steve Verba (Oracle) stated that this group can take more of a leadership role in the Real
Estate industry.

RETS Transaction Issues

The group pointed out that in the RETS 1.x GetObject transaction, there is no way to
search on timestamp for media.

Page 11 of 12



December 7, 2006

Another concern was how to retrieve a smaller payload that returns less or minimal
information. Such payloads could be Summary Payloads. In RETS2, the workgroup is
already addressing the need for Lists, Summary and Detail payloads. This group can
identify additional payloads for the RETS2 MLS Payload workgroup.

Page 12 of 12



